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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF COMMUNITY BASED MILITARY PROGRAMS

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9394 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9394

Diane Langley Fax: 603-271-8556 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

February 23, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care
Services, Bureau of Community Based Military Programs to enter into an agreement with Easter Seals
New Hampshire (Vendor # 177204), 555 Auburn Street, Manchester NH 03103, to provide Outreach,
Education and Training services that will benefit New Hampshire veterans, service members and their
families, in an amount not to exceed $1,300,000, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through June 30, 2016. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2015 and are anticipated to
be available in State Fiscal Year 2016, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budget, with ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office without Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-095-049-490510-29850000-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, COMMUNITY BASED CARE
SERVICES, BALANCE INCENTIVE PROGRAM BIP

State Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Contract Amount
Contracts for
2015 102-500731 Program Services 49053316 $401,576.77
Contracts for
2016 102-500731 Program Services 49053316 $898,423.33
Total $1,300,000
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to develop, provide, support, and/or coordinate outreach,
education and training services to improve access to high quality and integrated health and human
services for veterans, service members and their families.

These services include the development and provision of a specialized and consistent
messaging and materials campaign that informs and promotes public and provider awareness and
education about asking the question “Have you ever served in the military?” and how to repond when
the answer to that question is “yes.”



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of
Community Based Care Services (DCBCS), Bureau of Community Based Military Programs was
established to collaborate, coordinate and communicate with military and civilian provider groups in the
delivery of services to New Hampshire veterans, service members and their families.

Veterans account for almost eleven percent (11%) of the State of New Hampshire’s population.
Forty-eight percent (48%) of those veterans are over the age of 65.

Not all veterans are eligible for care through the Veterans Administration (VA), and many
choose not to seek care there. Of the 113,094 veterans residing in New Hampshire, only 28,730
receive their health care through the VA (Veterans Administration, FY2012). New Hampshire is the
only State in the nation without a full service VA medical facility (or equivalent Military Treatment
Facility).

Based on the January 2014 Report from the Study Commission on Post Traumatic Stress
Disorder (PTSD) and Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI), the Department has identified funding from the
Balancing Iincentive Program to support these initiatives.

This contract was competitively bid. On November 14, 2014, 2014 the Department issued a
Request for Proposals to solicit proposals from vendors to develop, provide, support, and/or coordinate
outreach, education and training services to improve access to high quality and integrated health and
human services for veterans, service members and their families. The request for proposals was
available on the Department of Health and Human Services website from November 14, 2014 through
December 22, 2014. There were five proposals submitted for this initiative.

The proposals were evaluated by a team of individuals from the Department of Health and
Human Services, members of New Hampshire Legislative Commission on Post Traumatic Stress
Disorder and Traumatic Brain Injury, as well as leaders from the military/civilian community. All team
members have knowledge and experience working with veterans, services members and their families
as well as significant business and management expertise.

The proposals were evaluated based on the criteria published in the Request for Proposals.
This vendor was selected receiving the highest score. The bid summary is attached.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, many community service
and healthcare providers will not receive the needed military education and guidance on how to
approach and provide the proper service for New Hampshire veterans, services members and their
families. A lack of guidance and education could result in limited access to high quality and integrated
health and human services for New Hampshire veterans, service members or their families. This could
lead to our New Hampshire veterans, service members and their families not receiving the health care
and other support services they need, resulting greater risk of undetected conditions which in turn
could increase costs for New Hampshire citizens.
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Area Served: Statewide

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health and Human
Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid Title
XIX), Catalog for Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.778, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)
05-1405NHBIPP.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this request.

Sincerely,

i .
Ay
Diane Langley N

Director

Approved By:%’\ m

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission Is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Outreach, Education and Training to Benefit NH Veterans, Service Members and their Families - Initiative 1
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1, IDENTIFICATION,
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
555 Auburn Street
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Manchester, NH 03103-4800
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 05-095-049-490510-
603-621-3464 29850000-102-500731 June 30, 2016 $1,300,000
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin 603-271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
. 5 iy .
~Znl et — Gl Dot sw (/0

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of AH | County of Hills bopusy V'™

On 219/{5 before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12. ML,

1. ISQ\\\ Qgggv ))Iotary Public o ce
O Ve }_/
N L. w4 .
S wea T Byt A (Sl
3q; ¢e Se i = T
El3. 2 Nﬁn@ and HSltlw)!:Notary or e
2 &
’/,/ .g_fARv ?°6$$ Diane L. Qo \0\5 MO*LL A
ZSW AN TS
1.14 /’Slnwﬁgqﬁéy Signatyre 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

DG~ ‘\Rv%\%) L DA \ DS

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Depﬁnﬁnt of ;dministration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

e ML pusan Afghe P, //(;//3

1.18 Approval by the GOérnor and Executw‘ Cbuncil

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30}
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers® Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page 4 of 4

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

‘_,_.—/
Contractor Initials: i
Date: f



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Outreach, Education and Training to Benefit New Hampshire Veterans,
Service Members and their Families

Initiative 1

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1.  The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2.  The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

2. Services to Be Provided

The Contractor will develop and provide specialized and consistent messaging and
materials to inform and promote public and provider awareness and education about asking
the question “Have you ever served in the military?”, and will provide coordinated outreach
throughout the state to inform healthcare, social service organizations and other groups
about the importance of asking the question and what to do when the answer is “yes.”

2.1.  The Contractor will collaborate with the Bureau of Community Based Military
Programs and the Contractor(s) associated with “Initiative 2 — Military Culture
Training and Education Campaign” and “Initiative 3 — Strengthening Military
Resources” of the QOutreach, Education and Training to Benefit New Hampshire
Veterans, Service Members and their Families contracts. The purpose of this
collaboration is to ensure that efforts between Initiative 1, 2 & 3 are coordinated to
ensure that the messaging, services, partners and programs are consistent, shared
and maximized across the State.

2.2.  The Contractor will develop and provide specialized and consistent messaging and
materials to inform and promote public and provider awareness and education about
asking the question “ Have you ever served in the military?” which will include but not
be limited to:

2241, Print Advertising;

2.2.1.1.  The Contractor will develop a series of print ads and strategically place
the advertisements in newspapers and special provider group
publications throughout the state.

Easter Seals of NH, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ﬁ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Outreach, Education and Training to Benefit New Hampshire Veterans,
Service Members and their Families

Initiative 1

Exhibit A

2.2.2. Banner Advertising;

2.2.21. The Contractor will include banner advertising on each publication’s
website, where Easter Seals has an advertisement, and will negotiate for
banner advertisement on websites not associated with publications but
those who target service providers.

2.2.3. Press Releases;

2.2.3.1.  The Contractor will write a minimum of four (4) press releases throughout
the campaign and distribute to relevant NH media outlets and affinity
publications.

2.24. Email Campaign,

2.2.41. The Contractor will develop monthly email messages to communicate
with service providers about the Ask the Question Campaign, to provide
them with updates, and training with information.

2.2.5. Billboard Advertising;

2.2.5.1.  The Contractor will place two (2) billboards at two (2) prominent locations.
2.2.5.2. Each billboard will be posted for three (3) months, with the second
billboard campaign running a few months after the first.

2.2.6. Collateral materials;

2.2.6.1. The Contractor will create five (5) different pieces of collateral related to
Ask the Question that will be used as leave behind materials for the
Outreach Teams. These pieces include:

22611, Thirty-thousand (30,000) brochures;

2.26.1.2. Thirty-thousand (30,000) training handouts;

2.2.6.1.3. Fifteen-thousand (15,000) full color monthly calendars;

2.26.1.4. Five-thousand (5,000) window cling/tent cards for businesses to
display;

2.2.6.1.5. Five-thousand (5,000) magnets; and

2.2.6.1.6. One-thousand (1,000) posters for provider clinics/offices.

2.2.7. Direct mail;

2.2.7.1.  The Contractor will conduct three (3) direct mail campaigns targeted to
segmented service providers throughout NH.

Easter Seals of NH, Inc. Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Outreach, Education and Training to Benefit New Hampshire Veterans,
Service Members and their Families

Initiative 1
Exhibit A
22711, The direct mail pieces will educate recipients about the Ask the
Question campaign and ask them to get involved by participating
in training about the initiative.
2.2.8. Toll free number;

2.2.8.1.  All material published by this contract will include a toll free number and a
TTDY line available to all callers; and

2.2.8.2. Wil provide access to technical assistance and referrals to experts as
needed.
2.2.9. Website;
2.2.9.1. The Contractor will abide by State Department of Information Technology
(DolT) Standards for the construction of the web site.

2.2.9.2. The Contractor agrees to consult with DolT Web Services in regards to
web standards and DolT procedures during its’ construction. Web
Services will review and advise on testing procedures, the results of
testing, and will conduct a final review prior to User Acceptance.

2.2.9.3. The website will include links to a wide range of informational resources
and will also link to the evolving on-line resource guide developed through
“Initiative 3 — Strengthening Military Resources”.

2.2.9.4. The website will provide access to individualized technical assistance and
referrals to experts as needed.

2.2.9.5. All materials published will include the website address that will enable
providers, the military-veteran community and the public, access to
additional information including referral resources, and involvement
opportunities.

2.2.9.6. The Contractor will work with the Bureau Chief of Community Based
Military Programs to ensure a Statewide web presence will exist upon the
conclusion of the contract.

2.210. Social media;

2.2.10.1. The Contractor will actively post content and engage providers across the
following social media networks:

2.2.10.1.1. Facebook (3 updates per week);
2.2.101.2. LinkedIn (3 updates per week);
2.2.10.1.3. Twitter (4 to 6 updates per week); and

Easter Seals of NH, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ‘z’v/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Outreach, Education and Training to Benefit New Hampshire Veterans,
Service Members and their Families

Initiative 1

Exhibit A

2.2.10.1.4. Instagram (2 updates per week).
2.2.11. TV/Audio Advertising; and

2.2.11.1. The Contractor will coordinate and record audio ads whereby service
members, veterans, and military family members tell the story about how
someone “asking the question” made a big impact on their life,

2.2.11.11. Ads will be run on TV, radio stations, YouTube and targeted
through online music outlets such as Pandora.

2.2.12, Video Pieces.

2.2.12.1. The Contractor will create two video pieces for the Ask the Question
Campaign and website.

2.2.12.1.1.  The first video will be animated and informational about the
difference professionals can make by asking the question.
22121.2. The second video will be an emotion piece about the difference a
professional made in the life of a veteran by asking the question.
2.212.1.21. This video will be in abbreviated form for 30 seconds for
cable ad placement.

2.3.  The Contractor will conduct outreach and educational visits throughout the state to
embed the practice and the importance of asking the question “Have you ever
served in the military?” starting with the following organizations and provider groups:

+ Community and private-practice mental health care providers;
e Emergency/urgent medical care centers;

e First Responders;

e Substance abuse treatment providers;

e Community social service organizations/public assistance;

* Employment services;

e Child and family services;

e Law enforcement/justice system personnel;

o \Women'’s crisis services;

o Homeless Shelters and Housing services;

e Educational services including institutions of higher education;

¢ Financial services including banks and credit unions;

Easter Seals of NH, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ﬁ
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¢ Department of Employment Security; and
» Other groups as identified by project partners, stakeholders and experts.
2.4.  The Contractor will establish a statewide Outreach Team that will conduct an

outreach campaign, which will encourage cultural shift and change to the intake
process to include the question, “Have you ever served in the military?” The
Outreach Team will include but not be limited to the following positions:

24.1. Project Management and Leadership (.50 FTE);
24.2. Project Director (.75 FTE);

243. Regional Project Coordinators;
244, Data Coordinator (.25 FTE);
245, Administrative Assistant (1 FTE);

2.4.6. Provider Outreach Specialists (15 hours per week per ServiceLink location);

24.7. Easter Seals Care Coordination team (equivalent to 40 hours per week); and

2.4.8. Engagement of Local, System —Specific Experts.

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

Easter Seals of NH, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials

Page 5 of 8 Date "2;/ 7/'4/

The Contractor will employ several approaches within each organization/provider
group, ranging from contacting senior management for consultation, to approaching
individual providers, to outreaching through provider-specific professional
organizations to ensure the identification of a broad base of providers.

The contractor will inventory and review existing best practices for follow-up intake
questions once a client/patient answers “yes” in each of the identified provider
sectors.

The Contractor will develop numerous effective, culturally competent, sector-specific
pathways, interventions and referral resource protocols that improve access to and
quality of a full range of services to service members, veterans and their families
when the answer to the question “Have you ever served in the military?” is “yes.”

The Contractor will provide and coordinate outreach throughout the state to inform
healthcare, social service organizations and other groups about the importance of
asking the question: “Have you ever served in the military?” and what to do when the
answer is “yes.”

The Contractor will provide continued communication and follow-up to ensure that
the front line providers are reached, creating one to one provider relationships.

Contractor will research organizations/groups in advance of face to face meetings or
direct contact to obtain key information, allowing them to discern the right approach
for particular providers.
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3. Data Collection and Ongoing Evaluation

3.1.  The Contractor will document and report on all organizations/groups targeted
throughout this initiative to track the organizations that incorporate this question into
the intake process as a result of the activities in this initiative. This will inciude but
not be limited to:

3.1.1. activities/visits conducted;
3.1.2. follow-up calls; and
3.1.3. follow-up visits.

3.2.  The Contractor will collect quantitative and anecdotal information from providers
regarding the use and effectiveness of questions/intervention/referral pathways.

3.3.  The Contractor will regularly review website traffic and report on: “engagement”,

including:
3.3.1. visits,
3.3.2. time on site,

3.3.3. popular pages,
3.34. effective keywords,

3.3.5. geographical engagement,
3.3.6. device/operating system used, and
3.3.7. other needs as identified throughout campaign.

3.4. Contractor will adjust social media outreach strategy throughout campaign based on
frequently asked questions and educational opportunities.

3.5.  Contractor will survey providers who received outreach messaging, visits and /or
technical assistance to assess if they are better equipped to provide resources and
referrals to veterans when they answer the question, “Have you ever served in the
military?”.

4, Reporting and Presentation Requirements

4.1.  The Contractor will provide the Bureau Chief of Community Based Military Programs
a work plan, within ten (10) days of the contract’s approval date, which will include
but not be limited to:

4.1.1. Objective/Activity;

4.1.2. Staff (including subcontractors) responsible for each portion of the
objective/activity, by task, as identified in section 4.1.1;

4.1.3. Specific Anticipated Outcomes (including the number of outreach visits and the
number of agencies that incorporate asking the question);

4.1.4. Monthly Timeline of Activities/Tasks (start date — end date); and

Easter Seals of NH, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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4.1.5. Samples of Follow up/Evaluation/surveys.

4.2. The Contractor will provide a monthly report to the Bureau Chief of Community
Based Military Programs which will include but not be limited to:

4.2.1. Outreach and Education Messaging and Materials update;

4.2.2, Outreach Team update;

4.2.3. Type of outreach activity (direct mail, email, phone, presentation, etc.);
4.2.4. Providers contacted;

4.2.5. Location of outreach activity;

4.2.6. Challenges, successes and other highlights of the outreach activity; and

4.2.7. Other information as requested by the Bureau of Community Based Military
Programs

4.3. The Contractor will provide the Bureau Chief of Community Based Military Programs
a quarterly digital social media report detailing new connections, engagement and
the nature of the engagement.

4.31. This information will be categorized according to:

43.1.1. age,
4.3.1.2. gender,
4.3.1.3. and location.

4.3.2. This information will include but not be limited to:

4.3.2.1. comments,
43.2.2. questions,
4.3.2.3. and messages received.

44, The Contractor will make quarterly presentations on the progress of the Ask the
Question Campaign to the New Hampshire Legislative Commission on Post
Traumatic Stress Disorder and Traumatic Brain Injury which will include but not
be limited to:

4.4 1. Examples of advertisement materials;

4.4.2. Examples of training materials;

4.4.3. Progress of the campaign; and

4.4 4. Challenges, successes and other highlights of the outreach activities performed.

4.5. The Contractor will survey targeted organizations/groups to ascertain the number
of military-veteran clients identified and served prior to asking the question and
again at the end of the project period to determine if asking the question and

Easter Seals of NH, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials gg‘
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understanding the appropriate pathways and military culture resulted in an
increase in the identification of military-veteran clients served and referrals made.

451. A report documenting the survey results will be provided to the Bureau of
Community Based Military Programs at the start of the project and at the end
of the project.

4.6. Contractor will conduct an impact/outcome evaluation that will employ data
collection techniques that effectively evaluate providers’ change in behavior
regarding asking the question, to include evaluating changes in the knowledge of
providers regarding the appropriate pathways of intake questioning and referral
resources for veterans, service members and their families.

46.1. A report documenting the above results will be provided to the Bureau of
Community Based Military Programs at the end of the project.

5. Ownership and Control

5.1.  All activities, programs, messaging, curriculum, training materials, advertising,
website material and other work pertaining to the scope of services are subject to
review and approval of the Bureau Chief of the Bureau of Community Based Military
Programs.

5.1.1. The New Hampshire Legislative Commission on Post Traumatic Stress Disorder
and Traumatic Brain Injury will serve as an advisory council for the scope of work
identified in this contract.

5.2. The Department of Health and Human Services and/or its funders will retain
COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original materials produced with the
Department of Health and Human Services contract funding, including, but not
limited to: messaging materials, brochures, resource directories, curriculum, training
material, equipment, protocols or guidelines.

5.3. Al documents (written, video, audio, and electronic) produced, reproduced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from the Bureau of
Community Based Military Programs before printing, production, distribution, or use.

5.4. The Contractor shall credit the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human
Services on all material produced under this contract.

6. Delegation and Subcontractors

6.1.  The Contractor shall provide all services, either directly or through use of sub-
contractor(s). If sub-contractor(s) are used, the Contractor shall: identify the name(s)
of the sub-contractor(s); include the rationale and appropriateness of the sub-
contractor(s) to be used, and indicate the terms of sub-contractor agreement(s). Use
of sub-contractor(s) is subject to Bureau of Community Based Military Programs’
approval prior to contract award and implementation.

Easter Seals of NH, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials E

Page 8 of 8 Date )Z E/////’



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Outreach, Education and Training to Benefit New Hampshire Veterans,
Service Members and their Families

Initiative 1

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Subject to the availability of Federal funds, and in consideration for the Contractor's compliance with
the terms and conditions of this agreement, and for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant
to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and expenses incurred, the Department shall pay the Contractor an
amount not to exceed, Form P-37, block 1.8, Price Limitation.

1.1. This contract is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) # 93.778, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Centers
for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program (FAIN # 05-
1405NHBIPP), for provision of services pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.2, The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in
compliance with funding requirements.

2. Payment for services shall be processed as follows:
2.1. The Contractor will submit an invoice by the fifteenth of each month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

22 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures and percentage
of time incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement.

2.2.1. Records must be available upon audit to substantiate all billing.

23. Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item budget shown in Exhibit
B-1.

2.3.1. Due to the maintenance of effort (MOE) requirements for federal funding, the
Contractor will submit a monthly staff time allocation invoice with their normal invoice
which shall include the following:

23.1.1. Name of Personnel;

2.3.1.2. Title/position;

2.3.1.3. The % of FTE for the contract;
2314. Hours worked on the contract;

2.3.1.5. Brief description of the activity performed.

24, Invoices shall be submitted to:

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Attn: Bureau Chief of Community Based Military Programs
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord, NH 03301-3857

3. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in
Exhibit A.

4. Afinal payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract ends.
Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal

- s ——
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law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials V
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

o
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financia! Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to ali contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.56. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPQOSAL. if applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL.: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

k=4
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditiona! Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence with
additional general liability umbrella insurance coverage of not less than $15,000,000 per occurrence; and

8
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’'s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

2
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: (K/J/‘/ Jé/ﬁ/\///é//// C
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title 1V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: A—-’;J,@,( \/[’»(////Zj C
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

0 ” ui

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. Aparticipant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: {[/‘//(é/\/fz(//(/fﬁ V4e
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
EEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;, Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 CF.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistieblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: E//)él/\/f///o/ﬂ///lﬂ

2 b~ Uiy —

Date Name: i_—'///\_/—/"/ya d 71—

Title:
C Ao

Exhibit G %//
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistleblower protections
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: }\[—//\/)Zé'/ \/(;L g A % //[ ‘.
2 1l ChLris

Date 1l\_li?lr(:.e: [:_.-//&_ /—7‘.544”
(40

7
Exhibit H — Cerlification Regarding Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials E

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

l.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
ll. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

C. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials g—
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

C. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’'s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving\g’__

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

I Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) -
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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Exhibit |

(4)

(S)

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’'s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

7
Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Lo ste~ Jea lr 0k, /A C
The State Name of the Contractor ’

(24
Diant LAPOLam %JZ{//L\

Signature of Aufhorized Répresentative  Signature of Authorized Representative

) ‘/Lu.)\ Z”///N N4 /) r—

Name of Authorized @:esen}ative Name of Authorized Representative
b \Wer C /0
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
Jlz] 15 XY pha
Date L Date
<. ——
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials %

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement L
Page 6 of 6 Date o é 74’0/_/



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY.
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2OXNOONRON

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Lo sie- St <4, 77 C

Contractor Name:

Q/é7é@7/ %iéubbg_—
Date %Zei e SAELA A

CA

Exhibit J — Cenrtification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ng - \53/7“ 3 qé 7

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

_X_ NO __ YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
e’
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials @
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State of Nefw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccretary of State of the State of New [lampshire, do hereby
certify that Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed November 6, 1967. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office

is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WIIEREOF, 1 hercto
sct my hand and cause to be aftixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire.
this 10" day of April A.D. 2014

% M/
William M. Gardner
Secretary of Statc




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
I, B ETv .BLLICKE , do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of EHSTE’( SNeAaLs /\//Jr /e
{Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held onJu JUNE /l, JolY -
(Date

RESOLVED: That the CitieF Fivade 1ac OPF((_%
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 19 day of FUBWMQ 201y
(Date Contract Signed)

4 ELiN TREame is the duly elected _ CHIEF Faeite Ofpicee
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

Slgn{\&jﬁ?f the Elected Officer)

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this [q% day of febo 2015,

STATE OF A 2. Ham,oslmfz,

County of _Hrllsboanigh

By %Q)(\‘u\/?su Ko
(Nameé of Elected Officer of the Agency)

\\\\\\HH//,, (Notary Public/Justiceof ttrelPzace)

RYS L
oom,?v/\ ) L
EXPIRES
- 14,2018 ¢ = ) )
ion Ex%mes S v
6\162’/9»« pu®

HAMPS"‘ N
”//um\\\‘\\

e
P
P
-
v
—

Wiz
\\\\Q 1/ ,

\

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



Client#: 497072 EASTESEA7
DATE (MWDD/YYYY)

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 8/22/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

" IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. It SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

A% oy 603-625-1107

PRODUCER
Bedford, NH 03110 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAK #

'23850

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain poflcies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
US! Insurance Services LLC
855-874-0123 ‘ msuren 4 : Philadelphia Insurance Company

certificate holder in lleu of such endorsement(s).
o5
"PHONE _  nrp o ’
AT, No, Exy: 855-874-0123
3 Executive Park Dr., Sulte 300 EMAL . sandy.lacroix@usi.biz
INSURED _INsuReR®e:

Easter Seais NH, Inc.

Easter Seals NY, Inc. : ::::::: g
555 Aubum Street oomne -
Manchester, NH 03103 ‘
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

NER TYPE OF INSURANCE iy iy POLICY NUMBER et WMJ Lws
A | GENERAL LIABILITY X | X |PHPK1220846 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000
| _X_COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY l %&%ﬂ? “E"TED 5100,000
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR . MED EXP (Any one penon) $5,000
X Professional Liab _PERSONAL & ADV INAY | $,000,000
- _ GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000 |
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT AFFLIES PER: | PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $3,000,000
pocy - | & LG : B _ ‘ ; s
A AUTOMORILE LIABILITY PHPK 1220846 09/01/2014 08/01/2015 Famaden oot ™7 |1,000.000
X anvauto BODILY INJURY {Per porson) |$
- ALLOWNED ‘ $oHEDULED . BODILY INSURY {Per accident) | §
" X wrenavros X ! atos et iogad s |
s
A [ X UMBRELLALAB X | ocoUR PHUBA471553 /01/2014 09/01/2015 EAGH OCCURRENCE $15,000,000
_ EXCESBLAB | | CLAIMS-MADE PS AGGREGATE 15,000,000
o0 __X_ ReTENTION$$10,000 o o s
WORKERS COMPENSATION , | WA e
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABR.ITY YIN D
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTIVE ™ EL EACHACCIDENT ~  §
(Mandatory In NH) | EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE, §
DEECAFTON OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT  $
|

DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Artach ACORD 101, Addtiional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
+~Supplemental Names**: Easter Seals NY, Inc., Easter Seals ME, Inc,, STS, inc., Agency Realty, Inc.,

Easter Seals Rhode Island, inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center, Inc., dba The Farnum Center,
Easter Seals VT, Inc.,- The General Liabliity policy includes a Bianket Automatic Additional Insured
Endorsement that provides Additional insured and a Blanket Walver of Subrogation status to the Certificate
Holder, only when there Is a written contract or written agreement between the named insured and the

Dept. of Health & Human Services
Concord, NH 03301

(See Attached Descriptions)
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
State of NH NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

E. Oontd Do

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of2
#S13141709/M13136562

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

LXGZP
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Easter Seals

DISABILITY SERVICES
®

Mission:

Easter Seals provides exceptional services to
ensure that all people with disabilities or special
needs and their families have equal
opportunities to live, learn, work and play in

their communities.
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BAKER|NEWMAN | NOYES

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
- Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Baker Newman 8 Noyes, LLC

1



To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
awhole. The accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather
than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

-

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 5, 2014
on our consideration of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Easter Seals New Hampshire,
Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mmmn?%ﬁ

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 5, 2014



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable, less contractual allowance
of $218,900 in 2014 and $210,300 in 2013, and allowance for
doubtful accounts of $440,800 in 2014 and $930,400 in 2013
Contributions receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $45,400 in 2014 and $25,500 in 2013
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Property held for sale

Bond issuance costs, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in trusts held by others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Other liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

2014 013
$ 2,757,134 § 3,042,621
341,653 247,471
10,122,747 11,224,708
705,374 686,110
300,046 541,961
678.326 783.844
14,905,280 16,526,715
986,277 4,558,513
25,094,383 28,066,884
1,289,894 822,504
235,113 244,751
13,833,046 14,264,341
1.550.919 6.830.800
$57.894.912 $71.314,508
$ 2,197,904 $ 4,212,394
1,907,743 1,812,128
4,251,482 4,143,454
858,258 839,567
615,570 708,132
4.228.339 796.290
14,059,296 12,511,965
999,167 4,218,053
987,185 1,367,458
2,714,243 2,050,214
18,976,300 25.318.667
37,736,191 45,466,357
14,189,337 14,767,708
944,862 925,437
5,024,522  10.155.006
20,158,721  25.848.151
$57,894912 $71,314.508



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2014

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions

Special events, net of related
direct costs of $819,901

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $67,889

Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue

Total public support and
revenue

Operating expenses:

Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services

Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations

4

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

744,262 $ 542,179 13,813 $ 1,300,254
1,059,080 756,895 - 1,815,975
468,261 33,589 - 501,850
448,558 - - 448,558

1.356.595 (1.356.595) - -
4,076,756 (23,932) 13,813 4,066,637
67,725,297 - - 67,725,297
25,094,296 - - 25,094,296
4,270,196 - — 4,270,196
742,337 3,613 - 745,950
65,204 - - 65,204
459,188 - — 459,188
98,356,518 3,613 — 98.360,131
102,433,274 (20,319) 13,813 102,426,768
515,992 - - 515,992
29,065 - - 29,065
89.987.134 - - 89.987.134
90,532,191 - - 90,532,191
9,419,570 - - 9,419,570
2.006,939 - - 2.006,939
11.426,509 — — 11,426,509
101,958,700 - - 101,958,700
122.586 - - 122,586
102.081.286 - — 102,081,286
351,988 (20,319) 13,813 345,482



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2014

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others

Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Other nonoperating losses

Increase in net assets before effects
of deconsolidation of affiliate

Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12

Increase (decrease) in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations —
see note 13

Total (decrease) increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ (594,854) § - 3 - % (5%4,854)
1,496,964 37,986 - 1,534,950
- - 574,970 574,970
14,352 - - 14,352
(249.092) - = (245.092)
667.370 37,986 574,970 1,.280.326
1,019,358 17,667 588,783 1,625,808
(121.612) (200) (5.719.267) - _(5.841,079)
897,746 17,467  (5,130,484) (4,215,271)
(1.476,117) 1,958 - (1,474.159)
(578,371) 19,425  (5,130,484) (5,689,430)
14,767,708 925437  10.155.006 25,848.151
$_14,189,337 $__944862 $.5,024522 $_20,158.721



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions
Special events, net of related
direct costs of $307,832

Annual campaigns, net of related

direct costs of $80,637
Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and grants from governmental

agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase in net assets from operations

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ 861,583 §$ 1,622,346 $ 13,648 § 2,497,577
857,369 131,154 - 988,523
391,930 51,304 — 443,234
369,823 - - 369,823
1,497,063 (1,497.063) - -
3,977,768 307,741 13,648 4,299,157
63,628,203 - - 63,628,203
24,013,223 - - 24,013,223
4,019,558 - - 4,019,558
681,151 1,141 — 682,292
144,771 - - 144,771
679.263 - - 679.263
93.166.169 1,141 - 93.167.310
97,143,937 308,882 13,648 97,466,467
609,102 - - 609,102
41,275 - - 41,275
84.342.495 - - 84.342.495
84,992,872 - - 84,992,872
9,403,893 - - 9,403,893
_1.755,299 - - 1,755,299
11,159,192 - - 11,159.192
96,152,064 - - 96,152,064
121,780 - - 121,780
96.273.844 - - 96,273.844
870,093 308,882 13,648 1,192,623



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others

Other nonoperating losses

Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations
Total increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

$ 2377632 § - $ - $ 2,377,632
789,496 24,173 - 813,669

- - 239,436 239,436
(107,120) - - (107,120)
7.392 - - 7.392
3,067,400 24,173 239.436 3.331,009
3,937,493 333,055 253,084 4,523,632
(1,107,544) (6.368) - (1.113.912)
2,829,949 326,687 253,084 3,409,720
11,937,759 598,750 9,901,922  22.438.431

$14,767,708 $_ 925437 $10.155,006 $25.848,151
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
(Decrease) increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile (decrease) increase in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Bad debt provision

Increase in fair value of beneficial interest in trusts held by others

Net loss (gain) on sales and disposals of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale and impairment losses

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Net unrealized and realized gains on investments

Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Rate reserve
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale
Cash provided for deconsolidation of affiliate
(Increase) decrease in investments, net
Change in assets limited as to use
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt
Issuance of long-term debt
Repayments on lines of credit
Borrowings on lines of credit
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

10

2014

013

$ (5.689,430) $ 3,409,720

1,771,703 1,807,843
265,007 774,569
(574,970) (239,436)
125,346 (283,942)
594.855  (2,377.632)
(1,534,950) (813,669)
5,841,079 -
(94,182) 194,509
818382  (2,677,707)
(20,090) (194,381)
102,454 520,329
81,516 (4,483)
304,390  (1,037,545)
- (435,008)
(61,478) (478,150)
(380.273) 198,799
1,549,359  (1,636,184)
(1,244361)  (4,859,057)
15,225 531,189
(21,440) -
1,709,413 (444,915)
265,625 375.304
724,462  (4,397,479)
(825,393) (750,199)
280,575 3,194,506
(53,526,692)  (27,372,936)
51512202  29.602.726
(2,559.308) _ 4,674,097
(285,487)  (1,359,566)
3,042,621 4,402.187
$_2757,134 $_3,042,621



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended August 31, 2014 and 2013

2014 013

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid $_1201000 $ 1,119,000

In 2014, Easter Seals NH transferred its sole member interest in a consolidated affiliate to an unrelated party
(see note 12). During 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH transferred property with a net carrying value of
$607,088 and $16,224, respectively, from fixed assets to property held for sale.

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of various separate
nonprofit entities: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (parent and service corporation); Easter Seals New
York, Inc. (Easter Seals NY); Easter Seals Maine, Inc. (Easter Seals ME); Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc.
(Easter Seals RI); Agency Realty, Inc. (real estate corporation); The Harbor Schools Incorporated (Harbor
Schools); Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center; Easter Seals Connecticut, Inc. (Easter Seals
CT); and Easter Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter Seals VT). Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole
member of each subsidiary. Easter Seals NH is affiliated with Easter Seals, Inc. (the national headquarters
for the organization).

On May 22, 2013 the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. voted to dissolve and
transfer the assets and liabilities of Special Transit Services, Inc. to Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

On March 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY, voted to discontinue the Bronx Early
Intervention program. On July 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in
Portland, Maine was transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME
discontinued offering those services. On September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT
voted to discontinue the camp programs and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013. On
January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and cease all
operations of this subsidiary, and also voted to approve discontinuing the group home and special
education programs in Rutland, Vermont. On June 11, 2014, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH
voted to discontinue the Pediatric Outpatient programs located in Manchester and Dover due to significant
losses the programs were experiencing. See also note 13.

In May 2013, the Boards of Directors of Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and Webster Place
voted to merge the two organizations with Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center being the surviving
corporation, having found such merger to be in the best interest of both organizations. The effective date
of the merger was September 1, 2013.

On July 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with The Connecticut Institute for the Blind,
Inc. d/b/a Oak Hill (Oak Hill), an unrelated entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole
member interest in Easter Seals CT to Oak Hill for no consideration. See also note 12.

Easter Seals NH’s purpose is to provide (1) programs and services for people with disabilities and other
special needs, (2) assistance to people with disabilities and their families, (3) assistance to communities
in identifying and developing needed services for residents, and (4) a climate of acceptance for people
with disabilities and other special needs which will enable them to contribute to the well-being of the
community. Easter Seals NH operates programs throughout New Hampshire, New York, Maine,
Massachusetts (prior to the closure of Harbor Schools), Rhode Island, Vermont and Connecticut.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and the
subsidiaries of which it is the sole member. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Easter Seals NH considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash, overnight repurchase agreements and money
market funds, excluding assets limited as to use.

The management of Easter Seals NH has implemented a practice to establish cash reserves on hand.
Approximately $2,483,000 and $2,432,000, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately
$2,512,000 and $2,238,000, respectively, of investments were on-hand under this practice as of
August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

Assets limited as to use consists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than 90 days, but less than one year, and investments. Investments are stated
at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
The changes in net unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other
nonoperating expenses, gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Easter Seals NH is the beneficiary of several trusts held by others. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an
asset the fair value of its interest in the trusts and such amount is included in permanently restricted net
assets, based on the underlying donor stipulations. The change in the interest due to fair value change is
recorded within other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses as permanently restricted activity.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September 1, 2011 are
recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity.

Donated property and equipment not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as
restricted support or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending resolution of the
uncertainties. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are recorded
as unrestricted support. See also note 5.

Property held for sale is recorded at the lower of net realizable value or carrying value. Easter Seals NH
recognized impairment losses on certain property held for sale in 2014 of $139,698, which is recorded in
other nonoperating losses.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets

Accounting rules require that intangible assets with estimable or determinable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed by
management for impairment. Intangible assets at August 31, 2014 and 2013 consist of a patient list
obtained in the acquisition of Webster Place.

Expected amortization of intangible assets through the end of their useful lives is as follows:

2015 $ 33,130
2016 33,130
2017 33,130
2018 33,130
2019 33,130
Thereafter 66.263

$231,913

Amortization expense recognized for the patient list in 2014 and 2013 totaled $33,130.

When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are impaired
by comparing gross future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the assets to
their carrying amounts. If cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets,
impairment has occurred and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates and
assumptions are required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible impairment.

Based on current facts, estimates and assumptions, management believes that no long-lived assets were
impaired at August 31,2014 and 2013.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being amortized by the straight-line method over the repayment period of the
related bonds, or the expected time until the next refinancing, whichever is shorter. Amortization expense
recognized during 2014 and 2013 was $9,638.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue generated from services provided to the public is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts
from clients, third-party payors and others based upon approved rates as services are rendered. A
significant portion of Easter Seals NH’s revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors. As such, Easter Seals NH is dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating activities.
There is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the
near term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to
be recoverable or payable are included in other fees and grants in the year that such amounts become
known. Easter Seals NY recognized additional revenue of approximately $7,654 in 2014 and $1,046,000
in 2013 due to favorable rate adjustments approved by the State of New York.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A third-party payor for three Easter Seals NY programs charged a facility tax assessment on a monthly
basis in 2014 and 2013. The charges are a part of Easter Seals NY’s reimbursement contract with the
payor. The facility tax assessment is based on approved rates. As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, the
facility tax assessment due was approximately $136,000 and $138,000, respectively, and is recorded in
deferred revenue in the accompanying statements of financial position.

Revenues are recognized as earned, or attributable to the period in which specific terms of the funding
agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred for the purposes specified by
the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts are accounted for as deferred
revenue until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are incurred.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on an analysis by management of the collectibility
of outstanding balances. Management considers the age of outstanding balances and past collection
efforts in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are charged against the allowance
for doubtful accounts when deemed uncollectible. The bad debt provision in 2014 and 2013 totaled
$265,007 and $774,569, respectively.

Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged.

Advertising

Easter Seals NH’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time
records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH’s management.

Charity Care (Unaudited)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as determined
by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered in accordance with decisions made
by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately $6,802,000 and
$7,373,000 for the years ended August 31,2014 and 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals NY, Easter Seals ME, Easter Seals VT, Easter Seals R,
Harbor Schools, Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and Easter Seals CT are exempt from both
federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, for Easter Seals
NY of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York. Agency Realty, Inc. received a
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies for tax-exempt status under
Section 501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a tax
position historically taken on various tax exposure items including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected to be taken in
income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold, based
upon the technical merits of the position.

Management has evaluated tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries
on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the organizations have maintained their tax-exempt
status, do not have any significant unrelated business income, and have taken no uncertain tax positions
that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Easter
Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to income tax examinations by the
federal or state tax authorities for years prior to 2011.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Accounting guidance requires that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements described in note §. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal to
the net amounts receivable under the swap agreements (not the notional amount) in the event of
nonperformance of the other party to the swap agreements. However, Easter Seals NH does not anticipate
nonperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other party.

As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $3,329,813 and
$2,758,346, respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note 8. As aresult
of changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments, Easter Seals NH recognized an
decrease in net assets of $571,467 ($23,387 of which is included in deconsolidation of affiliate as an
increase in net assets) for the year ending August 31, 2014, and an increase in net assets of $2,377,632
for the year ending August 31, 2013 related to swap agreements.

Increase in Net Assets from Operations

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the
provision of services are reported as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations. The primary transactions reported as other nonoperating expenses, gains and
losses include the adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps, the increase in the fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others, gains and losses on sales and disposals of property, plant and equipment,
and net realized and unrealized gains on investments.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2013 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
2014 presentation.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by management to determine
whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Management has evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH’s fiscal year end and
December 5, 2014, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Classification of Net Assets

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets
are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Gifts are
reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by
Easter Seals NH has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction
expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements
of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Permanently restricted net
assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by Easter Seals NH in perpetuity, the income from
which is expendable to support all activities of the organization, or as stipulated by the donor.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with UPMIF A, Easter Seals NH considers the following factors in making a determination
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the
fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic
conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of
the organization.

17



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

The major categories of endowment funds at August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Temporarily = Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total

2014

Camping program $ 3,072 $ 364,869 $ 367,941
Other programs 33,332 353,019 386,351
Operations - 3613207 3.613.207
Total endowment net assets $36,404 $4.331,0905 $4,367.499
2013 -

Camping program $ 1,918 $ 363,869 $ 365,787
Other programs 18,913 340,203 359,116
Operations — 3613207 3,613,207
Total endowment net assets $20.831 $4317,279 $4,338,110

Changes in Endowment Net 4ssets

During the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment-related
activities:

Temporarily Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2012 $ 16,043 $4.303,631 $4,319,674
Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees ’ 18,777 - 18,777
Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized) 563,208 - 563,208
Contributions - 13,648 13,648
Appropriated for expenditure (577.197) - (577,197)
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2013 20,831 4,317,279 4,338,110
Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees 22,617 - 22,617
Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized) 970,963 - 970,963
Contributions - 13,816 13,816
Appropriated for expenditure (978.007) - (978.007)
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2014 $_36,404 $4.331,095 $4,367,499
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

In addition to endowment net assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Permanently Total Non-
Temporarily  Restricted  Endowment
Unrestricted _Restricted (See Note 11) Net Assets

2014

Seniors program $ - $ 23,866 $ - $ 23,866
Veterans program 263,880 9,702 - 273,582
India initiative 104,600 668,198 - 772,798
Other programs — 174,192 - 174,192
Operations 13.820.857 32.500 693.427 14.546.784
Total non-endowment net assets $14,189337 $908,458  $_693427 $15,791,222
2013

Seniors program $ 88902 $ 11,729 § - $ 100,631
Veterans program - 517,035 - 517,035
India initiative - 57,881 - 57,881
Other programs - 285,461 - . 285,461
Operations 14.678.806 32,500 5.837,727 20,549,033
Total non-endowment net assets $14,767,708  $9204,606 $5837,727 $21,510,041

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent duration.
Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets. There were no deficiencies between the
fair value of the investments of the endowment funds and the level required by donor stipulation at
August 31,2014 or 2013.

Investment and Spending Policies

Easter Seals NH has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-
restricted funds that Easter Seals NH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is
intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate market index while
assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its endowment funds to provide
an average rate of return over a five year period equal to the rate of 2% over the inflation rate. Actual
returns in any given year may vary from this amount.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to, so long as it would not detract from Easter Seals NH’s critical goals and initiatives,
provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment retumn.

Leases

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangements which have been classified as operating
leases. Total expense under all leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately $2,420,000
and $2,168,000 for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Some of these leases have
terms which include renewal options, and others may be terminated at Easter Seals NH’s option without
substantial penalty. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at August 31, 2014,
through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements, are as follows:

Year Ended August 31:

2015 $2,018,870
2016 1,486,328
2017 1,044,716
2018 385,129
2019 221,698
Thereafter 31,240

Easter Seals NY leases certain facilities for school operations from unrelated parties at lease terms that
are either below fair market value, or that are almost entirely rent-free. Under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, lease agreements must be evaluated based upon their
economic substance rather than legal form, and a lease subsidy would be recorded as both contribution
and rental expense. However, Easter Seals NH has determined that such amounts would not be material
to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Easter Seals NY subleases certain office space located at 11 West 42™ Street in New York to an unrelated
party. The sublease agreement expires in February 2014. Total rental income earned under this sublease
agreement for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $65,000 and $144,000,
respectively.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 31:

2014 2013
Buildings $ 27,225,674 $ 33,015,085
Land and land improvements 2,696,051 3,494,009
Leasehold improvements 997,631 952,100
Office equipment and furniture 9,679,631 9,917,122
Vehicles 3,250,383 3,225,015
Construction in progress 296.043 216.678

44,145.413 50,820,009
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {19.051.030) (22.753.125)

$.25.094,383 $.28,066,884

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $1,728,935 and $1,765,075 in 2014
and 2013, respectively. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets included within discontinued
operations in 2014 and 2013 totaled $64,351 and $218,670, respectively.

During 2012, Easter Seals NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of approximately
$1,100,000. Under the terms of the donation, for a period of six years, Easter Seals NH must continue to
use the building as a child care center. Should Easter Seals NH cease to operate the program, or wish to
sell or donate the property, Easter Seals NH must first provide the donor with the opportunity to purchase
the property for $1. The contribution representing the fair value of the building has been recorded as
deferred revenue at August 31, 2014 and 2013.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, are as follows at August 31:

2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 523,616 $ 3,513,266
Certificates of deposit - 554,282
Marketable equity securities 1,883,153 2,770,110
Mutual funds 11,634,793 10,992,033
Corporate and foreign bonds 711,063 903,497
Government and agency securities 366,744 631.627

15,119,369 19,364,815
Less: assets limited as to use (1,286.323) (5,100.474)
Total investments, at fair value $13.833.046 $14,264,341
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

The composition of assets limited as to use at August 31, 2014 and 2013 is set forth in the table shown
below at fair value. The portion of assets limited as to use that is required for obligations classified as
current liabilities is reported in current assets.

2014 2013
Under an agreement with the State of Connecticut, which provides that
the funds be utilized for certain allowable program expenditures:

Cash and cash equivalents $ - $2,310,566
Certificates of deposit - 554,282
Mutual funds - 428,148
Marketable equity securities - 151,573

- 3,444,569

Under a deferred compensation plan (see note 7):
Investments 986,277 1,367,127
Maintained in escrow to make required
payments on certain bonds (see note 8):
Cash and cash equivalents 300,046 288,778

Total assets limited as to use $1.286323 $5,100,474

The principal components of investment income and net realized and unrealized gains included in
continuing operations and other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses are summarized below.

2014 2013
Unrestricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:
Dividend and interest income $ 742337 $ 681,151
Net unrealized gains . 668,363 231,743
Net realized gains 828.601 557.753

2,239,301 1,470,647
Restricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:

Dividend and interest income 3,613 1,141
Net unrealized gains 20,109 7,631
Net realized gains 17,877 16,542

41,599 25314

$2.280.900 $1,495.961

22



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Retirement Plans

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Employee contributions may be matched by Easter Seals NH as determined in the annual budget.
The combined amount of employer and employee contributions is subject by law to annual maximum
amounts. The employer match was approximately $673,000 and $474,000 for the years ended August 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. offers; to certain management personnel, the option to participate in
an Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may make
a discretionary contribution. The employees’ accounts are not available until termination, retirement,
death or an unforeseeable emergency. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. contributed approximately
$128,000 and $130,000 to this plan during the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
assets and liabilities associated with this plan were $986,277 and $1,367,127 at August 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and are included within assets limited as to use and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following at August 31:
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Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 A, tax exempt, issued through the New

Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority NHHEFA),

with a variable rate determined through weekly remarketing (0.06%

at August 31,.2014) through December 2034, annual principal

payments continually increasing from $400,000 to $1,060,000 with

a final payment of $1,060,000 due December 2034, secured by a

pledge of all gross receipts of Easter Seals NH and certain letters of

credit (see below) $14,275,000 $14,660,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, issued through the Monroe County

Industrial Development Corporation, interest only payments due

through December 2011, after which monthly principal and interest

payments ranging from $10,050 to $21,980 are required through the

maturity date of December 31, 2040. Interest is payable monthly at a

rate equal to 68% of the sum of the monthly LIBOR rate plus 2.65%

(1.91% at August 31, 2014) 4,929,360 5,052,360
Mortgage payable to a bank with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 2.65%,

principal of $9,500 plus interest payable monthly, with a final

payment of $2,299,000 due March 2015, secured by all business

assets and property of Easter Seals CT, excluding certain assets

limited as to use (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12). - 2,470,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

Non-revolving note payable to a bank with a total availability of
$3,500,000 with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 4.07% (4.23% at
August 31, 2014), interest only payments through June 2014, after
which monthly principal and interest payments are required
through the maturity in June 2015, secured by an interest in certain
property with a net book value of $3,888,720 at August 31, 2014

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $985 payable monthly through April 2018, secured by vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $525 payable monthly through September 2018, secured by
vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 3.66%, principal and interest
of $3,177 payable monthly, due August 2015, secured by vehicles

Unsecured note payable to an individual with a fixed rate of 5.25%,
principal and interest of $10,311 payable monthly, due April 2016

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $2,923 payable monthly through September 2018, secured by
vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $546 payable monthly through January 2019, secured by vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $195 payable monthly through March 2019, secured by vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.24%, principal and interest
of $608 payable monthly through July 2019, secured by vehicles

Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.24%, principal and interest
of $166 payable monthly through August 2019, secured by vehicles

Less current portion

Principal payments on long-term debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter

24

2014 2013

$ 3,482,580 $ 3,500,000

41,386 52,008
24,449 -

37,353 73,357

197,002 307,232
136,074 -
27,394 -
10,137 -
33,925 -
9.979 -

23,204,639 26,114,957

4,228,339 796.290

$18,976.300 $25,318,667

$ 4,228,339

698,294

642,760

669,263

643,064

16,322,919

$23,204,639



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

Lines of Credit and Other Financing Arrangements

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. had an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 nonrevolving equipment
line of credit. The line of credit was used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use
by Easter Seals NH through April 2, 2014. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was at a
fixed rate at the then prime rate minus 0.75% for maturities up to a five-year term. Upon maturity of this
agreement, the balances outstanding under the note payable at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were converted
to various term notes secured by vehicles, as described above,

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. also has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 revolving equipment
line, which can be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use by Easter Seals
NH through June 2017. Advances are converted to term notes as utilized. The interest rate charged on
outstanding borrowings is at a fixed rate equal to the then Business Vehicle Rate at the time of the advance
for maturities up to a five year term. Included in long-term debt are two notes payable of $33,925 and
$9,979 at August 31, 2014 that originated under this agreement. Availability under this agreement at
August 31, 2014 is approximately $456,000.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (the sole member of Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools), Easter Seals
NY and Harbor Schools have a revolving line of credit with a bank, with available borrowings up to
$7 million (a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $59,000). Outstanding advances
are due on demand. The revolving line of credit has the following sub-limits which were last amended in
May 2013: Easter Seals NH $3.725 million, Easter Seals NY $3 million and Harbor Schools $275,000.
The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings is at LIBOR plus 2.25% (2.41% at August 31, 2014).
Under an event of default, the interest rate will increase from LIBOR plus 2.25% to LIBOR plus 5.25%.
The line is secured by a first priority interest in all business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.,
Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line
of credit be reduced to $3,500,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. The agreement
also limits each borrower’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of $500,000. Amounts
outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $262,356
and $262,356, respectively, related to Harbor Schools, $1,935,548 and $1,599,505, respectively, related
to Easter Seals NY and $0 and $1,425,875, respectively, related to Easter Seals NH.

Easter Seals CT had a demand revolving line of credit with a bank with available borrowings up to
$1 million. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was at LIBOR plus 2.25%. The line was
secured by all business assets and property of Easter Seals CT, except for certain assets limited as to use
($3,444,569 carrying value as of August 31, 2013). Additionally, this line was guaranteed by Easter Seals
NH. The agreement also limited Easter Seals CT’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of
$1,000,000 related to real estate, and was cross collateralized with all Easter Seals NH borrowings at this
bank. Amounts outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2013 were
$924,658 (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12).
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)
NHHEFA 20044 Revenue Bonds

In connection with the NHHEFA 2004 A Revenue Bonds, Easter Seals NH is required to make deposits
of interest and principal of sufficient amounts to make the required interest payments and to retire the
bonds when due. The 2004A Revenue Bonds require that Easter Seals NH maintain certain reserve funds
with a trustee for current required principal and interest payments. Such amounts, which are included
within assets limited as to use, totaled $300,046 and $288,778 at August 31,2014 and 2013, respectively.
This agreement also requires bank approval prior to Easter Seals NH incurring additional indebtedness.
Easter Seals NH has two letters of credit securing the bonds for $14,450,993 each (expiring and subject
to renewal on March 15, 2015, and mainly to support future principal and interest repayments due under
the 2004 A Revenue Bonds). Easter Seals NH is required to replace or renew the two $14,450,993 letters
of credit upon their expiration or the related bonds may be subject to early redemption. Easter Seals NH
pays an annual fee for the two letters of credit relating to the 2004A NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Fees
incurred on these letters of credit totaled approximately $183,000 and $157,000 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds

On December 1, 2010, Easter Seals NY, in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development
Corporation and RBS Citizens, issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds (the Series
2010 Bonds). The Series 2010 Bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located in
Irondequoit, New York, provide for improvements to a school building and an existing rehabilitation
facility, and construct two residential rehabilitation facilities. Additionally, proceeds were used to
- refinance certain Easter Seals NY outstanding debt.

The Series 2010 Bonds are secured by a mortgage on all properties and improvements financed by the
bonds, and are guaranteed by Easter Seals NH. Easter Seals NY may elect to prepay some portion or all
of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee, as defined. This agreement also requires bank
approval prior to Easter Seals NY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010 Bonds are subject
to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1, 2016, and thereafter
every five years through June 1, 2036.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Easter Seals NH has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the Series 2004A
Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement has an outstanding notional amount of $14,275,000 and
$14,660,000 at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which reduces, in conjunction with bond
principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in December 2034. Easter Seals NH remits interest
at the fixed rate of 3.54% and receives interest at a variable rate (0.06% at August 31, 2014).

On February 23, 2011, Easter Seals NY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in
connection with the Series 2010 Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional
amount of $4,929,360 and $5,052,360 at August 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which reduces, in
conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. Easter Seals
NY remits interest at a fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of monthly
LIBOR).
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

On December 27, 2010, Easter Seals CT entered into an interest rate swap agreement in connection with
an outstanding mortgage payable of $2,470,000 at August 31, 2013. The original notional amount of
$1,800,000 reduces ratably in conjunction with repayment of the note payable. The swap agreement
effectively changed the variable rate to a fixed rate of 2.72% for the notional amounts outstanding, which
is approximately 65% of the related mortgage payable (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12).

The fair value of the above interest rate swap agreements totaled $3,329,813 and $2,758,346 at August 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively, $615,570 and $708,132 of which was current at August 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. During the years ended August 31,2014 and 2013 net payments required by the agreements
totaled $674,448 and $692,269, respectively. These payments have been included in interest expense
within the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. See note 11
with respect to fair value determinations.

Debt Covenants
In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter Seals
NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum liquidity

and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH was in compliance with restrictive
covenants specified under the NHHEFA bonds, Series 2010 Bonds, and other debt obligations.

Donated Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time in connection with Easter Seals NH’s program services
and fundraising campaigns. However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to measure the value.

Related Party Transactions

Approximately 13% of other fees and grants revenue is derived from a pass-through grant from Easter
Seals, Inc. for both years ended August 31,2014 and 2013. Easter Seals NH is a member of Easter Seals,
Inc. As of August 31, 2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH had a receivable of $334,352 and $247,471,
respectively, from Easter Seals, Inc. related to amounts due under this grant. Easter Seals NH also has an
amount due from Easter Seals CT of $7,301 at August 31, 2014 (see also note 12). Membership fees to
Easter Seals, Inc. were $122,586 and $121,780 for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively and are reflected as support of National programs on the accompanying consolidated
statements of activity and changes in net assets.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at their measurement date. In
determining fair value, Easter Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
approaches, and utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These
factors may be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of
unobservable factors.

Certain of Easter Seals NH’s financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial
interest held in trusts, investments and the interest rate swaps, and are classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market
transactions involving identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuations for financial instruments derived from other methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions
and projections in determining fair value.

The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate to valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no changes in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NH at August 31, 2014 and
2013.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents are deemed to be Level 1. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds and government and agency securities that are based upon quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets are reflected as Level 1. Investments in certain other mutual funds
and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are transparent and generally are based upon quoted
prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and reflected as Level 2. Investments in
certificates of deposit are at cost plus accrued interest, which is estimated to approximate fair value and
are included in Level 2.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Beneficial Interest in Trusts Held by Others

The beneficial interest in trusts held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair value
levels of the underlying investments within the trusts. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds, government and agency securities and other asset funds are based upon
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and are reflected as Level 1. Investments in marketable
equity securities, mutual funds and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are transparent and
generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and
reflected as Level 2. Investments in alternative and other asset funds are derived from other
methodologies, including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques,
and not based on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions, and are reflected as Level 3.
Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining fair value.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The fair value for the interest rate swap liabilities is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the
counterparty using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and
discount the future amounts to present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest
rates.

At August 31,2014 and 2013, Easter Seals NH’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were classified as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2014
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 523616 § - $ - $ 523,616

Marketable equity securities: ‘
Large-cap 1,238,248 - - 1,238,248
International 644,905 - - 644,905

Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income 3,562,348 - - 3,562,348
Intermediate-term bond fund 824,376 - - 824,376
High yield bond fund 264,363 - - 264,363
Foreign bond 14,168 - - 14,168
Government securities 752,030 - - 752,030
International equities 784,490 - - 784,490
Domestic, large-cap 1,500,128 - - 1,500,128
Domestic, mid-cap 147,920 - - 147,920
Domestic, small-cap 3,480 -~ - 3,480
Domestic, Multi Alt 112,233 - - 112,233
Real estate fund 128,303 - - 128,303
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity
Corporate and foreign bonds
Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Small-cap
International
Emerging markets
Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income
International fixed income
Commodity
Real estate investment trust

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

]

01
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
International
Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income
Intermediate-term bond fund
High yield bond fund
Foreign bond
Government securities
International equities

(V8

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 2,510,846 $ - - $ 2,510,846
508,556 - - 508,556
193,682 - - 193,682
326,879 - - 326,879
991 - - 991
- 711,063 - 711,063
366.744 - - 366,744
$14,408.306 $_711,063 — $15,119.369
$ 16,172  § - - $ 16,172
225,799 57,705 - 283,504
- 33,685 - 33,685
- 72,307 - 72,307
46,695 - - 46,695
- 133,076 - 133,076
30,821 - - 30,821
42,050 - - 42,050
35,117 - —~ 35.117
$__396.654 $_296,773 = §_693427
$ - 3 - $3329.813 §$ 3329813
$ 3,513,266 $ - - $ 3,513,266
— 554,282 - 554,282
2,550,313 - - 2,550,313
219,797 - - 219,797
3,304,368 - - 3,304,368
543,938 - - 543,938
274,582 - - 274,582
210,342 - - 210,342
511,971 - - 511,971
693,837 - - 693,837
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
Real estate fund

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Fixed income and bond
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity

Corporate and foreign bonds

Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Mid-cap
Small-cap
International
Emerging markets

Corporate bonds

Foreign bonds

Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income
International equity
International fixed income
Domestic large-cap equity
Domestic mid-cap equity
Domestic small-cap equity
Commodity

Government and agency securities

Real estate investment trust

Alternative and structured asset funds

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 816,851 § - - $ 816,851
369,532 - - 369,532
237,828 - - 237,828
3,868 - - 3,868
427,663 - - 427,663
2,002,955 - -~ 2,002,955
493,556 - - 493,556
913,054 - - 913,054
173,305 - - 173,305
14,383 - - 14,383
- 903,497 - 903,497
631,627 - - 631.627
$17,907,036 $1.,457,779 = $19364.815
h) 4,555 % - - 3 4,555
2,544,889 148,594 - 2,693,483
809,286 45,600 - 854,886
- 33,110 - 33,110
319,796 40,369 - 360,165
118,842 - -~ 118,842
- 709,131 - 709,131
- 6,029 - 6,029
- 654,361 - 654,361
34,664 - - 34,664
19,931 - - 19,931
67,476 - - 67,476
16,984 - - 16,984
20,565 - - 20,565
5,465 - - 5,465
20,202 - - 20,202
95,123 - ~ 95,123
33,921 - 88.834 122,755
$.4,111,699 $1637,194 $_ 88,834 $ 5837727
$ = $ = $2,758346 §$_2.758346
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of Easter Seals NH’s Level 3 assets and
liabilities for the years ended August 31, 2014 and 2013:

Alternative
Interest and Other
Rate Swaps . Asset Funds

Beginning balance, August 31, 2012 $(5,135978) § 78,614
Unrealized gains, net 2,377,632 10.220
Ending balance, August 31, 2013 (2,758,346) 88,834
Unrealized loss, net (594,854) -
Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12 23.387 (88.834)
Ending balance, August 31, 2014 $(3,329.813) § -~

Excluding the impact of the deconsolidation of an affiliate (see note 12), the net amounts of unrealized
gains (losses) for the period attributable to the change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to the interest
rate swaps still held at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $(594,854) and $2,377,632, respectively. The
amount of unrealized gains for the period attributable to the change in unrealized gains relating to the
Level 3 investments still held at August 31, 2014 and 2013 were $0 and $10,220, respectively.

Easter Seals NH’s other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
from affiliates, program and other accounts receivable, contributions receivable, accounts payable, lines
of credit, and long-term debt, have fair values approximating their carrying values because of the short-
term nature of the financial instruments or because interest rates approximate current market rates.

Deconsolidation of Related Entity

On July 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with The Connecticut Institute for the Blind,
Inc. d/b/a Oak Hill (Oak Hill), an unrelated entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole
member interest in Easter Seals CT to Oak Hill for no consideration. Accordingly, all of the assets,
liabilities and net assets of Easter Seals CT were transferred to Oak Hill effective July 31, 2014. Easter
Seals NH was concurrently released from ali guarantees and other obligations related to Easter Seals CT.
Easter Seals NH recognized a decrease in net assets of $5,841,079 as a result of the deconsolidation of
Easter Seals CT. The accompanying 2014 consolidated financial statements include the operating results
of Easter Seals CT for the period from September 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014 and the year ended
August 31, 2013.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

12. Deconsolidation of Related Entity (Continued)

Summary statements of financial position and activities of Easter Seals CT for the period ended July 31,
2014 and year ended August 31, 2013 follow:

July 31,
2014 August 31,
(Unaudited) 2013
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 21440 § 270,732
Program and other accounts receivable, net 18,572 283,994
Assets limited as to use 3,548,526 3,444,569
Investments, at fair value 256,832 1,699,874
Beneficial interest in trust held by others 5,719,267 5,207,585
Fixed assets 1,879,966 1,919,988
Other assets 24,828 108.708
Total assets _ 11,469,431 12,935,450
Liabilities and net assets:
Line of credit - (924,658)
Deferred revenue , (3,138,717)  (3,456,204)
Long-term debt (2,365,500) (2,470,000)
Other liabilities (124.135) (731.465)
Total liabilities (5.628,352) (7.582.327)
Total net assets $.5.841,079 §$_5353,123
11-Month

Period Ended Year Ended
July 31,2014  August 31,2013

Total public support and revenue $1,027,556 $ 1,298,832
Total operating expenses (856,861) (1,048,542)
Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses 778,724 361,524
Increase in net assets before discontinued operations $_949.419 $_611.814

Losses from discontinued operations within Easter Seals CT for the eleven month period ended July 31,
2014 and year ended August 31, 2103 were $454,230 and $657,561, respectively.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

13. Discontinued Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include various programs and entities that are
reported as discontinued operations, as follows:

e  On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. voted to approve
discontinuing the group home and special education programs in Rutland, Vermont.

e  On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and
cease all operations of this subsidiary.

s OnMarch 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY voted to discontinue the Bronx Early
Intervention program.

e On May 2, 2014 the Sayville program in NY was discontinued as a license was not able to be
obtained.

e  On July 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in Portland, Maine was
transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME discontinued offering those
services. On October 17, 2013, the Maine Board of Directors voted to close the Maine Vocational
programs.

e  On September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT voted to discontinue the camp
programs and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013.

e  On June 11, 2014, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to discontinue the Pediatric
Outpatient programs located in Manchester and Dover due to significant losses the programs were
experiencing.

The management of Easter Seals NH has determined that the closure of each of these programs/entities
met the criteria for classification as discontinued operations. The decisions to close the programs/entities
were based on performance factors.

Summary statements of financial position for each of the above discontinued programs/entities as of
August 31,2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Vermont Harbor Schools New York
2014 2013 014 2013 2014 2013
Total assets $ - $ - $878,144 $ 872,744 $ 32,929 $51,896

Total liabilities
Net assets (deficit):

1,197 648,892 595,053 44,511 9,289

Unrestricted - (1,197 180,556 230,951 (11,582) 42,607
Temporarily restricted - - 24,870 22,914 - -
Permanently restricted - - 23,826 23,826 - -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2014 and 2013

13. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Maine Connecticut New Hampshire
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total assets $ 85 $1,888 § — $2,119,068 $800,810 §$ -
Total liabilities - 38 - 2,470,000 31,783 29,592
Net assets (deficit):

Unrestricted 825 1,850 - (350,932) 769,027 (29,592)

Summary statements of activities for each of the above discontinued programs/entities for the years ended
August 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Vermont Harbor Schools New York
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total public support
and revenue $ - 3 - % 22,127 $ 12907 $% - $ 320,825
Operating expenses - (20,310) (70,891) (329,961) (192,456)  (628,465)
Other nonoperating -
expense, gains
or losses - - 830 (1,469) - -
Gain on sale of
properties, net - - - 291,788 - -
Total decrease in
net assets $ - $_(20,310) $_(47.934) $_ (26,735) $_(192.456) $(307,640)
Maine Connecticut New Hampshire
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total public
support and
revenue $ 4,667 $ 210,588 $ 57,166 § 774,143 $ 1276909 $ 1,996,997

Operating expenses  (42,262)  (324,009) (511,596) (1,431,704) (2,018,853) (1,970,004)
Gain (loss) on sale
of properties, net = 325 200 — - (15,563)

Total increase
(decrease) in

net assets $(37.595) $(113,096) $(454.230) $_(657,561) $_(741944) $ 11,430

During 2013 Easter Seals NH sold two properties related to the closure of certain programs, which
resulted in net gains on the sales of property of $276,550.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2014 and 2013

14. Concentrations

Easter Seals NH maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed amounts guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Financial instruments which
subject Easter Seals to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and investments. Easter Seals’
investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. Investments
that exceeded 10% of investments include the “Lord Abbett Short Duration Income A Fund” as of
August 31, 2014,
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Daisy Wojewoda

OUTLINE OF SKILLS AND QUALIFICATIONS:

. Program and Staff Management — Oversee staff, programs, and planning for
Military & Veterans Services department, including multi-agency/multi-system
collaboration

. Project Design, Implementation, and Management — Leadership role in several

successful new program and systems change initiatives, including Deployment Cycle
Support Care Coordination Program; Autism Network; and “Getting There”

. Proposal/Grant Writing, Presentation Writing, Curriculum Development, other
Technical Reporting and Writing skills

J Vocational Assessment—over 20 years performing comprehensive evaluations
including administering and interpreting results of Aptitude, Achievement, Interest
and Personality testing

J Rehabilitation Counseling—over 20 years providing guidance related to Vocational,
Medical and Psycho-Social aspects of Disability

J Career Counseling—over 20 years working effectively with adults and adolescents
of varied backgrounds, ages, circumstances, to assist in career planning and
decision-making

J Marketing and Customer Service
. Program Evaluation, Compliance, Quality Control
J Expert testimony in area of Vocational Evaluation/Rehabilitation

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:
Director Of Military & Veterans Services, Easter Seals NH, Manchester, N - 2007 — present

Oversee staff and programs for Easter Seals department committed to providing high quality,
responsive services to service members, veterans, and families. Oversee training and systems
coordination initiatives. Developed one-of-a-kind Pilot Program providing comprehensive Care
Coordination to service members and their families in conjunction with the deployment cycle. Directed
an inter-agency network of Care Coordination providers and oversee an internal “core team”.



Responsible for building effective collaborations between civilian, DoD, and VA systems. Work closely
with NHNG, VA, and the NH DHHS Division of Community Based Military Programs. Coordinate

with Veterans Count to effectively facilitate access to emergency funds for needy clients. Oversee
dynamic staff including employees and independent contractors. Responsible for program design/tool
and curriculum development, quality control, reporting. Was awarded Distinguished Service Medal by
NH National Guard in 2011.

Vocational Evaluation Supervisor/Project Director
Easter Seals NH, Manchester, NH - 1992-2007

This is a “working manager” position, responsible for the development, provision, and day-to-
day management of Vocational Evaluation Services programming and various new initiatives at a large,
rehabilitation/social service agency. Duties/responsibilities include:

Provide vocational assessment, counseling, and planning services, using various
techniques including interviewing, testing, exploration of training/educational background and options,
study of labor market and occupational trends, and career counseling to assist individuals in establishing
realistic, rewarding career goals and plans. Serve individuals with wide range of circumstances,
experiences, educational levels, ages, interests, health/disability needs, referred through state agencies,
Veterans Administration, school districts, private rehabilitation companies, insurance companies, and
attorneys.

Develop, market, expand and manage Vocational Evaluation program, providing
valuable career counseling and assessment services to adults and adolescents with disabilities, injuries,
and other special needs and circumstances throughout NH and VT. Develop protocol/format for
providing one-to-two-day vocational assessments which are both useful and cost-effective. Purchase
and maintain extensive inventory of vocational assessment tools (tests, interest inventories, work
samples, etc.) and career/occupational information resources. Market services to broad range of funding
sources and individuals throughout two-state region.

Write comprehensive Vocational Evaluation Reports based on counseling/assessment
activities and outlining clear-cut, realistic recommendations for career planning. Other writing-related
duties in this position including preparing detailed proposals for federal contracts and developing written
marketing materials.

Provide administrative and clinical supervision to program staff of one additional
Counselor and one Administrative Assistant, and evaluate staff performance. Very effective in
maintaining long-term, reliable staff. Oversee day-to-day operations of program including preparing all
billing and purchasing. Collect various program data as indicated to meet agency data collection needs
and standards. Assist in development of program budget of $125K to $135K, and monitor budget.



Direct the design, implementation and management of new initiatives and programs. Develop
NH Veterans Services project, a pilot program in partnership with the NH Joint Force Headquarters and
NH-DHHS. Includes all aspects of project implementation and management.
Additionally, co-chair of Easter Seals Service First customer service program, and winner of Easter
Seals NH’s 2004 Service First Award.

Vocational Evaluator
Morgan Memorial Goodwill Industries, Inc., Boston, MA — 1989-1992

Planned and administered one-week vocational assessments for a2 multi-disability population, and
wrote comprehensive Vocational Evaluation Reports. Also served as member of Case Management
Team, Group Counselor for a nutrition/fitness-related group, and Human Rights Officer for the Agency.

EDUCATION: Master of Science in Rehabilitation Counseling
Bosten University, 1992
Graduated “with Distinction” designation

Bachelor of Music

SUNY Potsdam, 1986

Additionally: All Coursework completed for Master of Music 1n
Composition at Northern Illinois University 1986-1988

CERTIFICATIONS: Certified Vocational Evaluation Specialist (CVE) #03156
Certified Rehabilitation Counselor (CRC) #28492

Previous Work Experiences:

. Sold Telecommunications cquipnient/services

. Recruiting for a junior college

. Taught Music Theory and related courses at the College-level as part of Graduate
Assistantship in Music Composition

. Various retail/customer service jobs

. Performer (music and stand-up comedy)

References Available Upon Request



Stephanie Masterman Higgs

STRENGTHS Seasoned professional with proven relationship-building excpersence
HIGHLIGHTS Strong background in effectively managing day-to-day operations and critical projects
Proactzze approach to problerm-solving, strong negotiation skills, bip picture focus
Reipected for high initiative, open-mindedness/ objectivity, and adaptability

” o

Viewed a5 focused/ engaged.” “authentic,” “insightful” and “energetic & confident”

EDUCATION — MS, Marriage and Family Therapy, University of NH, expected licensure 1/15
Graduate Certificate, Personnel Administration, NH College
BS, Business Administration, University of NH

EXPERIENCE  Easter Seals Military and Veteran Services, Manchester NH 4/2013- present

Training Coordinator/ Care Coordinator

*  Serve as project lead on mulu-faceted state-wide military culture training and
military/veteran service access initiative: conducting assessment of current competency in
specified service provider network and developing recommendations for network-wide
process and knowledge-base improvements; developing proposal for and organizing
state-wide training for selected provider populations; creating and facilitating training
content for new care coordination provider

*  Developed and direct the implementation of training program for care coordinator role
within ESNH MVS

¢ As Care Coordinator, provide a wide range of support to veterans, active scrvice
members, and their famnilies, establishing tatlor-made plans to identfy and address
stzessors and problems through either direct service or through accessing resources to
meet individual needs, including but not limited to: counsehing (individual, couples,
famuly); employment assistance (resumnes, career counseling, job placement); childcare and
respite resources; helping children deal with adjustment issues at home and 1n school;
helping clients navigate and access the healthcare system (civilian and VA); budgeting and
financial managernent; emergency financial assistance.

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Exeter NH 7/2011-4/2013

Outreach Family Therapist

* Independenty counseled a diverse clinical caseload of children and thewr families, of
varying configurations. Responded effectively to client crises. Demonstrated capability
and sound judgment 1n diagnostic evaluation and risk assessment, treatment planning,
and case management. Effectively engaged with clients to address and priorize their
needs for support and create plan for therapy.

*  Collaborated extenstvely and proactively with agencies and health care providers (i.e.
DHHS/DCYF, CFS, local school systems, local non-profit aid agencies,
PCPs/psychiatnsts, and outreach specialists) to ensure effecuve coordinadon of care and
client access to local resources

University of NH Marriage & Family Therapy Center, Durham, NH 2008-2010

Graduate Student Therapist  Fully Accredited (AAMFT) Clinical Training

*  Demonstrated competency 1n counseling a clinica] caseload of individuals, couples, and
families with a variety of complex presenting problems. Utilized a systemic therapy
perspective to diagnose, evaluate, and develop treatment plans to customize treatment to
the needs and goals of the client.

s+ Collaborated with external agencies 1o ensure effecuve coordination of care as well as
compliance 1 response to legal offenses (Le. child neglect, domestic violence)



PROFESSIONAL
STRENGTHS

EDUCATION

RELATED
EXPERIENCE

Stephanie Masterman Higgs

Seasoned professional with strong relationship-building experience
Respected for high initiative, open-mindedness/objectivity, and adaptabrlity
Viewed as “focused/engaged,” “authentic,” “insightful,” and “energetic &

confident”

MS, Marrage and Family Therapy, University of NH, est. licensure 11/14
Graduate Certificate, Personnel Administration, NH College
BS, Business Administration, University of NH

Easter Seals Military and Veteran Services, Manchester NH 4/2013- present

Care Coordinator

o Provide awide range of support to veterans, active service members, and their
families, estblishing tailor-made plans to identify and address stressors and problems
through either direct service or through accessing resources to meet individual needs,
including but not limited to: Counseling (indvidual, couples, children); Employment
assistance {lesumes, career counseling, job placement); Chuldeare and respite
resources; Helping children deal with adjustment issues at home and i school;
Helping msigate and access the healthcare system (civilian and VA); Budgeting and
financial menagement; Emergency financial assistance.

»  Developed ind durect the implementanon of Care Coordinator training program

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Exeter NH 7/2011 - 4/2013

Outreach Family Therapist

¢ Independentdy counsel a diverse chinical caseload of children and their families, of
varying configuratons. Respond effecuvely to client cnises. Demonstrate capability
and sound judgment in diagnosuc evaluauon and risk assessment, treatment planning,
and case management. Effectvely engage with clients to address and prionitize
problems ncluding substance abuse, home and/or school behavioral problems,
sexual/emotonal/physical assault and abuse, domestic violence, homelessness and
financial suessors, separation and divorce, blended famuly/stepfamily dynamics,
parenting conflicts, trauma, depression, anxiety, gnef and loss, communication
problems,and physical/mental/emononal disabiliues

»  Collaborae extensively and proacuvely with agencies and health care providers (Le.
DHHS/DCYFE, CFS, local school systems, local non-profit aid agencies,
PCPs/psychirists, and outreach specialists) to ensure effective coordination of care
and clientaccess to local resources

University of NH Marriage & Family Therapy Center, Durham, NH 2008-2010

Graduate Student Therapist  Fully Accredited (AAMFT) Clinical Training

*+  Demonsuted competency in counseling a chinical caseload of individuals, couples,
and families with a vanety of complex presenung problems. Utlized a systernic
therapy perspective to diagnose, evaluate, and develop treatmnent plans to customize
treatment 1o the needs and goals of the client.

+ Colleborarzd with external agencies 1o ensure effecuve coordination of care as well as
compliznce 11 response to legal oftenses (Le. child neglect, domesuc viclence)



EXPERIENCE

PROFESSIONAL
AFFILIATIONS

University of NH Counseling Center, Ducham, NH 2001- 2011

Office Manager

Managed support operations for clinical staff, ensuring smooth day-to-day operations

»  Collzbonited with many campus departments to ensure Center’s facilities, data, and
personnel aeeds were effecuvely met

*»  Developecall markenng materials and annual reports, served as Center webmaster

s Past Chairof UNH’s staff council, served on staff committees that developed an
employee suggestion program, a family leave policy, and a radically different
performenze management philosophy and process

» Recipient of UNH Presidenual Award of Excellence

Liberty Mutual Group, Dover, NH 1985-2001

Operations Manager 1999-2001

Directly managed claims and legal support operations and served as a consultant for

department-wice Initiatives

»  Initated st:ff development needs assessments; managed the design, marketing and
delivery of needs-based training programs

+  Conunually evaluated organizanonal structure, process, and procedures; directed
implementztion of needed changes; troubleshot day-to-day operational
problems/ssues

+  Consulted rgularly with managers to ensure effecuve personnel management
practices

Regional Human Resources Manager, 1998-1999

Managed the delivery of human resources services within assigned regions

»  Collaborated with region business management to align HR plans to support their
business objectives

*  Led HR swif in conductng workforce analyss, recruitment and retention programs,
office consolidation/ reorganization initiatives, compensation and performance
management practices

*  Partnered with business managers and in-house counsel to effectively resolve
employee relanons investigations; monirored situation thereafter to lessen legal risk

Senior Human Resource Consultant, 1994-1998

Accomplishments included:

»  Developed manager’s guide and presentaton materials for newly inroduced disability
management protocols that were adopred and used by business units companywide

+ Co-designad “new work habits” program that sparked work culture change

¢ Recetved sward for development of management guide and accompanying
presentation materials for new performance management process

Additonal professional experience includes:

Sentor Auditor- Internal Auditing, Liberty Mutual Group. Evaluated business practices
and processes and assessed for risk as well as improvement opportunities, reported on
recommendations for change.

Employment Speczalist- Administravve Services, Liberty Murual Group.

American Assoc. for Marriage & Family Therapy (AAMFT)- Associate Member



REBECCA MALANDRINO

SUMMARY

*  Extensive experience in data analysts, data manipulation, and database programming

*  Ouistanding database and staustical proficiency with excellent communication and Interpersonal
skalls.
»  Handle muluple tasks and precedence; take iniuatve; self mouvated and team oriented

*  Proficient in MS Word, Excel, Power Prvot, Access, Outlook, Power Point, Frontpage and Publisher.
I am also skilled with Adobe Photoshop, Image Ready, Page Maker, DreamWeaver, and Quark
Express.

EXPERIENCE
2013-Present  Easter Seals, NH Manchester, NH

Program Coordinator Military and Veteran Services

As Program Coordinator for Easter Seals Military and Veteran Services [ am responsible for carrying out
various data analytical tasks, data manipulation, venifying data for calculauon errors and data irregularity.
Addivonally T am responsible for ensuring that all data collecuon, management and reporung are
completed in a umely and accurate manner. I liaise with mternal and external stakeholders on data and
outcome reportng. [ ensure compliance with external contracts as well as department and agency
polictes and procedures and undersiand agency and grant budget systems to assist in developing and
monitoring budgets. I communicate effectively and encourage open-communication ensuring updated
agency, departmental and contractualinformation s distributed appropriately.

[ have assisted in oversight of Military & Veterans Services programs, including Deployment Cycle Care
Coordination Program, Access To Recovery, Supportive Services for Veteran Famuilies, and other new
developing programs.

In addition to my data responsibibies I serve on the Cross Organizauonal Leadership Team, which
strives to meet the goals of the agenq’s strategic plan and to ‘connect the dots” internally as an agency in
order to better serve clients. I am also on the Data Analyst Team whose primary goal 15 to create a
dynamic and interacuve database which will serve all of the agency’s programs.

2008-2013 Easter Seals, NH Manchester, NH

Offuwe Manager Mulitary and Veteran Services

As Office Manager I was responsible for the creation and management of the data collection system for
the Deployment Cycle Care Coordimuon Program (DCS-CCP), a parinership between the State of NH,
NH National Guard and Easter Seils New Hampshire. [ assisted in finding and implementing best
practces tor the setup of DCS-CCP,and well as being the primary internal contact for the team of Care
Coordinators across the state. I was also the manager of the Veterans Count Financial Assistance, which
provided immediate financial assistace for clients who were 1n need, this management included liaising
with the Veterans Count Board ard Easter Seals Business office to ensure prompt reporung and
auditable records. 1 created and generated the monthly data outcomes report along with creating
compatible end user forms, some of which have been adopted by other agencies, in order to collect and
manage data and outcomes. I was zlso responsible for all general clertcal management of the office.

20003-2008 Easter Seals, NH Salem, NH
Offece Manager Early Intervention

As Otfice Manager [ was the 1niernal conract for a ream of 12 therapists providing services for children



with spectal needs. 1 was a trained ase manager for children and am responsible for coordinaung therr
therapies and family resources. Addidonally, I was responsible for all medical records, insurance
venification, data entry and creation 2nd implementation of all internal paperwork. I served on the Safety
Committee and oversaw all Safety requirements in our office. [ also served on the Service First
Committee which promotes excellent customer service and handles customer service trainings and

concerns.

2000-2003 Buderus Hydronic Systems Londonderry, NH

Advertising Coordinator

As Adverusing Coordinator I was the primary contact for an outside sales force of 10 people. 1 also
created and published all of the punted adverusing, the website, as well as creaung marketng programs
tor regional markets. I served as the primary hostess for visiting customers which entailed entertaining
atter work hours. I created and facilitated nationwide sales campaigns annually. I was the pnmary back
up for the office switchboard and helped in various other areas of the office, such as inputting data into
the POS system, and supervising the inventory of and distnbuting all promotional matersals.

1996-2000 Prudental Verant Realty Derry, NH

Offuce Assistant

[ was the assistant to Real Estate Broker, Patrcia A. Dowling. As such, 1 was responsible for assisting
her with her sales transactions, the creaion of her marketing matertal, and overseeing Home Inspections

and walk throughs. I was also delegated many various clerical functions.

ebveation I e e
1993-1997 Pinkerton Academy Derry, NH
» High School Diploma
1997-1999 Lake Forest College Lake Forest, IL

» Major in Computer Science and German

S



PAMELA A. DUBE

OBJECTIVE
Fam a skilled public refations professional with twenty years of diversified experience in media relations, public speaking, event
planning, leadership, marketing strategies, writing, editing, management, graphic design, website design, networking, crisis
communication, social media, and community collaborations. I seek a challenging position where | may best utilize my acquired skills,

experience and education.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE—MANCHESTER, NH 9/05-Present

Senior Director of Communications

Work with program and development staff to create and implement public awareness by developing client stories and
preparing visual media for activities geared at enhancing the communities’ understanding of Easter Seals.

®  Publish newsletters and press releases.

®  Establish and maintain contacts with various media sources

¢ Oversee the development and maintenance of the Agency’s website(s).

® Develop strategies for and oversee implementation of social media with the Agency.

2 Setupandimplement a Speaker’s Bureau using staff, volunteers, board members and consumers to present on general Agency
and program specific topics.

¢ Develop, implement and market an Agency Tour Program to local college, high schools, businesses, and civic organizations
to increase public awareness and expand the volunteer and donor base.

® Manage department’s internship program.

®  Supervise other communications staff in the department, as well as communications efforts in other states, as appropriate.
¢ Attend meetings with and/or represent the Development department as requested on Agency committees and task forces.
® Provide public relations representation for the Agency at business and community events, meetings and functions.

® Establish and manage budgets associated with public education and promotional activities.

®  Assist development of Agency and program marketing material.

® Actas liaison with National Easter Seals (NES) to analyze marketing needs and product positioning and develop print materials
to support programs.

® Strategize with program department heads and develap marketing campaigns and media buys to promote specific programs
and create collateral support materials for the Agency.

® Responsible for writing template letters for gift acknowledgements,
* Respansible for writing recognition/award groposals and/or letters of support.
¢ Review currentrecognition events with recommendations that reflect responses from our various publics.

® Develop and maintain orientation rofe-playing presentation for new and current employees on how to be an ambassador for
Easter Seals.

*  Design and edit program-specific newsletters for areas that need continual promotion (Alzheimer’s, Brain Injury, Children’s
Service etc.)

* tditand review all Agency visual and promotional materials to meet approved formats and standards.
Support the communications and public rzlations board committee.

®  Assist Program Vice President in media crisis in the absence of President and VP Development.



GIRL SCOUTS OF SWIFT WATER COUNCIL—BEDFORD, NH 6/95-9/05
Public Relations Manager

*  Promote understanding and awareness among Girl Scout membership through the deveiopment of
communication tools including a bi-monthly newsletter distriouted to 4,000 volunteers, annual
reports, brochures, event flyers and a variety of publications targeting specific audiences.

= Maintain strong print, radio, and broadcast media contacts throughout NH and VT for placement of
feature stories, news stories, and special inserts.

= Provide direction and leadership to all depariments on the davelopment of communication tools with
a focus on editing for content, cansistency, and overall design.

= Oversee development and content of marketing materials and press releases.

= Create, implement, and evaluate a long-range comprehensive, strategic communications plan for
internal and external audiences.

> Develop and maintain an innovative and interactive council website to ensure contemporary,
consistent, and appropriate messages for infernal and external audiences.

= Implement local brand marketing initiatives and public relations campaigns in NH and VT in
accordance with national programs.

= Serve as council spokesperson with media, volunteers, local businesses, civic organizations, and
potential donors.

= Develop speeches and talking points for organization leadership.

= Plan, direct and staff a variety of small- and large-scale events for up to 700 girls and adults.

= Supervise and support the work of the Product Sale Coordinator, resuliing in a $2.6 million profit
from the Annual Girf Scout Cookie Sale and Fall Product Sale.

= Train and supervise regional public relations volunteers and support their efforts through print
materials and workshops.

= Support fund raising efforts through active participation on the Raising More Money< team.

Including speech preparation, event coordination, and video development for a series of monthiy
evenis culminating in three regional events raising a total of $110,000.

= Implement a system with all staff members for the successful collection of Girl Scout “stories” to be
used in public relations materials and donor presentations.

= Develop and implement Operation Cookie, a collaborative project with the NH Air National Guard,
which successfully shipped more than 15,000 boxes of cookies to U.S. military overseas.

= As an active member of the Crisis Team, proactively manage potentially negative media coverage
oy utilizing crisis communication techniques.

= QOrganize and maintain extensive photo, slide and video hb'arv

= Negotiate contracts for all print jobs and work closely with vendors selected for those jobs.

= Responsibly manage an annual department budget of $53,000.

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, DURHAM, NH
* Craduated Cum Laude 5/93 - BA w/ honors in English/Journalism {minor in Women's Studies).
Surmmer 1992—Staff Reporter for The Telegraph, Nashua, NH—Internship.
Summer 1993—Staff Reporter for The Boston Globe NH Weekly, Manchester, NH—Advanced
Internship

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

PUBLIC RELATIONS SOCIETY OF AMERICA, YANKEE CHAPTER MEMBER 1997 — PRESENT

= Yankee Chapler Board of Directors (Treasurer)—manage $25,000 vearly budget. (2003 — Present)

*  Yankee Chapter Board of Directors (Assistant Treasurer)—assist with management of $25,000
yearly budget and process overdue payment netices. (2001 - 2003)

*  Yankee Chapter Education Committee Co-Chair—organize annual daylong seminar addressing the
needs of public relations practitionzrs through workshops, media panels, and hands-on activities.
(1999—2001)

DERRY/LONDONDERRY/TIMBERLANE UNITED WAY COMMURNICATION COMMITTEE 1999 — 2001
= Coniributiens 1o this velunteer committes include devaioping a communications and brand
merketmg plan, assisting in wiebsiie development, organizing special events, and networking with

other public relations professionals to assist ihis United Way in delivering powerful marketing
.nﬂssages
GREATER MANCHESTER UNITED WaY COMMUNICATION COMMITTEE 20061 - 2002

2 Q fer expertise and support in the development of a comprehensive public relations/marketing plan.



COMPUTER SKILLS

Excelient computer skills and a fast learnar. Proficient in:
Microsoft Office Suite—Word, Publisher, PowerPoint. Access, Excel
Dreamweaver (web design)

RECENT PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT TRAINING

= Brand Marketing and the Unite¢ Way—Portsmouth, NH

= Information Mapping to Get to Where You Need to Go—PRSA

= Crisis Communication and Publc Relations—PRSA

= Using Technology to Spread Your Message—PRSA

= Developing a Creative and Uselul Website—PRSA

= Public Relations Saciety of America Worldwide Convention—Atlanta, GA

= Website Design for Nonprofits—Portsmouth, NH

= Terry Axelrod "Raising More Money®” Training—New York

= Fundamentals of Supervision—UNH Continuing Education—Manchester, NH
= Keeping Morale High—Human Nature at Work—Salem, NH

References and writing samples available upon request



~  GINGER MUNSON

PROFILE

Energized and dedicated professional with extensive knowledge of Army infrastructure, culture and support
systems. Highly adaptable and quick to learn new procedures and protocols. Excellent written and oral
communication skills. Strong initiative. Microsoft Suite experience.

EXPERIENCE

DISTRICT WIDE SUBSTITUTE., SAU #25. BEDFORD. NH, APRIL 2012-
PRESENT
Conduct daily teaching syllabus for grades 1-12. Manage classroom activity and behavior. Coordinate
directly with support staff for individual student learning. Liaison with teachers and school staff as
required.

CO-OWNER, BEDFORD FIELDS, BEDFORD NH, 1994-2010
As Co-Owner responsible for all daily operations to include managing and training staff members;
inventory buying, management and display; operations and financials review; customer development and
service. Developed staff manual and training, Planned and facilitated all quarterly board meetings.
Strategic planning, organizing and completion of building expansion. Chaired weekly/monthly staff
operations meetings.

PROJECT DIRECTOR, EASTER SEALS NH, MANCHESTER. NH 2007-2008
Assist VP of Operations in developing and implementing new department of social services for military
veterans and their families. Researched existing services and programs to find gaps in services. Developed
relationships and encouraged partnerships with existing Veteran Service programs. Liaison to State
National Guard Family Program and numerous Veteran/community service organizations. Spokesperson
for Easter Seals veterans services program in the greater Manchester community. Care coordinator for
current and recently deployed service members and their families providing referral to local social services,
financial counseling and encouragement/support for military spouses and family members.

ASSISTANT OPERATIONS OFFICER, US ARMY, FORT CAMPBELL, KY 1988-
1994

Assist Operations Officer in planning and executing all unit missions and training. This includes
developing and implementing quarterly and monthly training; planning for and conducting aviation support
missions for Infantry (ground soldier) groups and other Army units; and liaison with other military units as
necessary to coordinate training sites, activities and logistics. Present and brief fellow military personnel
and supervisors on plans and operations. Maintain personal proficiency as an Army Aviator (helicopter
pilot). Participate in flight training and missions as necessary.

EDUCATION

UNITED STATES ARMY FLIGHT SCHOOL, FORT RUCKER, AL 1989 SANTA
CLARA UNIVERSITY. SANTA CLARA . CA FINANCE - 1988



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc

Name of Program: Initiative #1 - Ask the Question

Director-Military Veterans |
Wojewoda, Daisy Services $32,145 50.00% [SUS
Higgs, Stephanie Project Director $20,210 75.00%
TBD Admin Assistant $10,509 100.00%
Malandrino, Rebecca Data Coordinator $17.179 25.00% 4
TBD Care Coordinator $16,105
Munson, Virginia Vets Count/Business Outreach $1,478

Hillsborough County SLRC OTR
TBD Resource Team $11,511
Dube, Pamela Sr Director Communications $24,252 15.94%
TBD Development support staff $45,000

$0

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc

Name of Program: Initiative #1 - Ask the Question

Director-Military Veterans
Wojewoda, Daisy Services $96,435 50.00% &

Higgs, Stephanie Project Director $60,630 75.00% .

TBD Admin Assistant $31,528 100.00%

Malandrino, Rebecca Data Coordinator $51,5635 25.00%
TBD Care Coordinator $48,314 0.00%
Munson, Virginia Vets Count/Business Outreach $4,435 0.00%

Hillsborough County SLRC OTR b
TBD Resource Team $34,534 75.00%}
Dube, Pamela Sr Director Communications $72,756 15.94%
TBD Development support staff $135,000 16.75%

$0 0.00%
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)
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